

5101:3-2-07.3 **Methodology for determining relative weights.****(A) General description.**

For hospitals subject to prospective payment for inpatient services, the Ohio department of job and family services, ("ODJFS") will reimburse for inpatient hospital services an amount per discharge in each diagnostic category. The payment is reflective of the relative hospital resources used by each diagnostic category in comparison to the statewide average resource use for an admission. The method for determining the weight of a diagnostic category is based on its average charge compared to an average charge for all discharges. This rule describes the diagnostic categories and the method for determining the relative weights for each category. Special consideration is given to psychiatric diagnostic related groups (DRGs) 425 to 435 and neonatal DRGs 385 to 390 as described in this rule.

(B) Diagnostic related groupings.

- (1) Except as otherwise specified in paragraph (E) of this rule, relative weights are calculated for each classification of inpatient hospital discharge classified by "grouper," a software package distributed by; "3M Health Information Systems," used by medicare during federal fiscal year 1998, and modified as described in this rule. Services are classified into one of the diagnostic categories based on:
 - (a) The "International Classification of Diseases, 9th Revision, Clinical Modification" (ICD-9-CM), principal and secondary diagnoses;
 - (b) The ICD-9-CM surgical procedures provided to the recipient during a hospital stay;
 - (c) The recipient's sex;
 - (d) The recipient's age; and
 - (e) The recipient's discharge status.
- (2) Cases ~~which~~that would be classified in DRG 385 or DRG 456 because of a transfer or death but ~~which~~that involve a length of stay greater than fifteen days are classified in the DRG ~~which~~that is appropriate in accordance with paragraphs (B)(1) to (B)(1)(e) of this rule if the transfer or death is not considered.
- (3) For cases classified into DRG 386, three subgroups are identified and three

5101:3-2-07.3

2

different relative weights are calculated, based upon the ICD-9-CM codes and the level of the neonatal nursery. These levels are those recognized by the Ohio department of health as of March 29, 1987.

- (a) One subgroup and relative weight is created based upon cases ~~that~~which have ICD-9-CM code 765.0 listed as one of its diagnoses.
 - (b) For cases ~~that~~which group as a DRG 386, and do not have ICD-9-CM code 765.0, two relative weights are calculated for this subgroup. One relative weight is calculated using data specific to hospitals with a level I or II nursery and a second relative weight is calculated using data specific to hospitals with a level III nursery.
- (4) For cases classified into DRG 387, four subgroups are identified and four different relative weights are calculated, based upon the infant's birthweight and the level of the neonatal nursery. These levels are those identified by the Ohio department of health as of March 29, 1987. These subgroups are described in paragraphs (B)(4)(a) and (B)(4)(b) of this rule.
- (a) For cases ~~that~~which group into DRG 387 and have a birthweight of zero to one thousand seven hundred fifty grams, two subgroups are identified and two relative weights are calculated within each subgroup. One relative weight is calculated using data specific to hospitals with a level I or II nursery and a second relative weight is calculated using data specific to hospitals with a level III nursery.
 - (b) For cases ~~that~~which group into DRG 387 and have a birthweight of one thousand seven hundred fifty-one grams and above, two subgroups are identified and two relative weights are calculated within each subgroup. One relative weight is calculated using data specific to hospitals with a level I or II nursery and a second relative weight is calculated using data specific to hospitals with a level III nursery.

(C) Medicaid claim record.

For the purposes of determining the relative weight for each DRG, the sample includes all claims associated with discharges, as described in paragraphs (C)(1) and (C)(2) of this rule.

- (1) Effective for discharges on January 1, 2006 through ~~December 31, 2009~~December 31, 2011: For the purposes of determining the relative weight for each DRG, the sample includes all claims associated with discharges on or after July 1, 2001 through June 30, 2003 and paid by December 31, 2003.

5101:3-2-07.3

3

All claims included in the sample were previously paid and passed through the edits created by ~~the department's~~ ODJFS's prospective payment system. Claims were adjusted as described in paragraphs (C)(3) to (C)(4)(b) of this rule.

- (2) Effective for discharges on or after ~~January 1, 2010~~ January 1, 2012, and every calendar year thereafter, relative weights shall be determined on an annual basis. For the purposes of determining the relative weight for each DRG, the sample includes all claims associated with discharges during the state fiscal year ending in the calendar year preceding the immediate past calendar year prior to January first of the calendar year to which the new relative weights shall apply. All claims included in the sample were previously paid and passed through the edits created by ~~the department's~~ ODJFS's prospective payment system. Claims were adjusted as described in paragraphs (C)(3) to (C)(4)(b) of this rule.
- (3) Claims deleted from computation.
- (a) Claims that were submitted by an out-of-state provider.
 - (b) Claims that were submitted by hospitals excluded from the prospective payment system as described in rule 5101:3-2-07.1 of the Administrative Code.
 - (c) Claims that were originally grouped into DRG 000, 469 or 470.
 - (d) When two or more records existed with the same provider, same recipient number, and exact dates of services, the latest paid claim was retained and the earlier paid claim or claims were deleted.
 - (e) If multiple claims for the same provider, same recipient number, and overlapping dates of service occurred, and the date span of the most recently paid claim included the date span of any and all overlap claims, and none of the claims grouped into DRGs 425 to 435, the most recently paid claim was retained and all others were deleted.
 - (f) Claims associated with cases that were incorrectly billed to ODJFS, e.g., where third party covered the entire stay.
 - (g) Claims that were for an inpatient discharge but had charges of less than one hundred dollars, unless there were ten or fewer claims that grouped into the DRG.

FEB 18 2010TN No. 09-020 Approval Date: _____

SUPERSEDES

TN No. 08-015 Effective Date: 01-01-2010

5101:3-2-07.3

4

(h) Transfer claims unless there were ten or fewer claims that grouped into the DRG.

(i) Nontransfer claims paid on a per diem basis.

(j) Claims with net charges equal to zero.

(4) Adjustments to claims.

(a) Claim-specific adjustments were included if processed by ~~the Ohio department of job and family services~~ ODJFS on or before the last day of the medicaid claim record period as described in paragraphs (C)(1) and (C)(2) of this rule.

(b) Organ acquisition and transportation costs for heart, liver, and bone marrow transplants were removed from the claim prior to submission to the grouper.

(D) Development of the relative weights.

The relative weights were calculated based upon the total allowable charge for each case for the sample of claims as described in paragraphs (C) to (C)(4)(b) of this rule, subject to the edits as described in paragraphs (D)(3)(a) and (D)(3)(b) of this rule.

(1) Computation of the geometric mean charge for each DRG.

(a) For DRGs 1 to 385, 391 to 424, and 439 to 503, the geometric mean charge was determined for each of these DRGs.

(b) For each subgroup in DRG 386 as described in paragraphs (B)(3) to (B)(3)(b) of this rule, and for each subgroup of DRG 387 as described in paragraphs (B)(4) to (B)(4)(b) of this rule, the geometric mean charge was calculated.

(c) For DRGs 388, 389, and 390, the geometric mean charge was calculated three times to determine a geometric mean charge specific to hospitals with a level I nursery, hospitals with a level II nursery, and hospitals with a level III nursery. For example, three geometric mean charges were calculated for DRG 388, one reflecting data from hospitals with a level I nursery; one reflecting data from hospitals with a level II

FEB 18 2010

TN No. 09-020 Approval Date: _____

SUPERSEDES

TN No. 08-015 Effective Date: 01-01-2010

5101:3-2-07.3

5

nursery; and one reflecting data from hospitals with a level III nursery.

(d) For DRGs 425 to 435, two geometric mean charges were calculated for each DRG in this category. One geometric mean charge was calculated using the charge for each case within these DRGs from free-standing psychiatric hospitals, and hospitals ~~which~~that have a psychiatric unit distinct part. A "psychiatric unit distinct part" is one ~~which~~that is recognized by medicare as described in rule 5101:3-2-02 of the Administrative Code and where the hospital has notified ~~the department~~ODJFS of medicare's certification. A second geometric mean charge was calculated for each DRG 425 to 435 using data from all other hospitals (hospitals ~~which~~that do not have a recognized psychiatric unit distinct part under medicare). In accordance with rule 5101:3-2-03 of the Administrative Code, ~~the department~~ODJFS does not pay for DRG 436 and DRG 437.

(e) If no cases were grouped by the medicare fiscal year 1998 grouper into any DRG, the geometric mean charge for these DRGs is the geometric mean charge that was used for these DRGs prior to the effective date of this rule.

(2) Calculation of the statewide geometric mean length of stay for each DRG.

(a) For DRGs 1 to 385, 391 to 424, and 439 to 503, the geometric mean length of stay was calculated using all cases within each of these DRGs as determined in paragraph (C) of this rule.

(b) For each subgroup in DRG 386 as described in paragraphs (B)(3) to (B)(3)(b) of this rule and for each subgroup of DRG 387 as described in paragraphs (B)(4) to (B)(4)(b) of this rule, the geometric mean length of stay was calculated.

(c) For DRGs 388, 389, and 390, the geometric mean length of stay was calculated three times to determine geometric mean length of stay specific to hospitals with a level I nursery, hospitals with a level II nursery, and hospitals with a level III nursery. For example, three geometric mean lengths of stay were calculated for DRG 388; one geometric mean length of stay was calculated using all cases in DRG 388 within a hospital ~~which~~that has a level I nursery; one geometric mean length of stay was calculated based on data from hospitals with a level II nursery; and one geometric mean length of stay was calculated based on data from hospitals with a level III nursery.

FEB 18 2010

TN No. 09-020 Approval Date: _____
SUPERSEDES

TN No. 08-015 Effective Date: 01-01-2010

5101:3-2-07.3

6

- (d) For DRGs 425 to 435, the geometric mean length of stay was calculated two times for each of these DRGs to reflect the difference in the geometric mean length of stay in hospitals with and without psychiatric unit distinct parts. To determine the geometric mean length of stay for cases treated in hospitals with no distinct part psychiatric unit, the geometric mean length of stay was calculated using all cases in these hospitals. To determine the geometric mean length of stay for cases in hospitals with psychiatric unit distinct parts, the geometric mean length of stay was calculated using all cases in these hospitals.
- (e) If no cases were grouped by the medicare fiscal year 1998 grouper into any DRG, the geometric mean length of stay for these DRGs is the geometric mean length of stay that was used for these DRGs prior to the effective date of this rule.
- (3) Deletion of outlier cases.
- (a) For each DRG and each subgroup within DRGs 386 to 390 and 425 to 435, a standard deviation for charge and length of stay was calculated based upon the cases used in the calculation of the geometric mean as described in paragraphs (D)(1) to (D)(2)(d) of this rule.
- (b) Cases ~~which~~ ~~that~~ had charges or reflected a length of stay that was two standard deviations above the geometric mean as calculated in paragraphs (D)(1) to (D)(2)(d) of this rule were deleted except for DRGs 385 to 390. For DRGs 385 to 390 cases ~~which~~ ~~that~~ had charges or reflected a length of stay that is one standard deviation above the geometric mean as calculated in paragraphs (D)(1) to (D)(2)(d) of this rule were deleted.
- (4) Recalculation of geometric mean length of stay and geometric mean charge for each DRG and subgroups in DRGs 386 to 390 and 425 to 435 was done excluding outlier cases as described in paragraphs (D)(3)(a) and (D)(3)(b) of this rule.
- (5) Computation of the arithmetic mean charge for each DRG.
- Computation of the arithmetic mean charge for each DRG and subgroups was calculated using all cases as described in paragraphs (C)(1) to (C)(4)(b) of this rule, excluding outlier cases, as described in paragraphs (D)(3)(a) and (D)(3)(b) of this rule.

FEB 18 2010

TN No. 09-020 Approval Date: _____
 SUPERSEDES
 TN No. 08-015 Effective Date: 01-01-2010

5101:3-2-07.3

7

- (a) For DRGs 1 to 385, 391 to 424, and 439 to 503, the arithmetic mean charge was determined for each of these DRGs using the total charge per case for each DRG for all hospitals excluding outlier cases.
- (b) For each subgroup in DRG 386 as described in paragraphs (B)(3) to (B)(3)(b) of this rule, and for each subgroup of DRG 387 as described in paragraphs (B)(4) to (B)(4)(b) of this rule, the arithmetic mean charge was determined excluding outlier cases.
- (c) For DRGs 388, 389, and 390, three separate arithmetic means were calculated for each DRG using data specific to either hospitals with a level I nursery, with a level II nursery, or hospitals with a level III nursery unit. In each instance, the claims used within a DRG, and within a specific level nursery, excluded outlier cases.
- (d) For DRGs 425 to 435, two arithmetic mean charges were calculated for each DRG in this category. One arithmetic mean charge was calculated using the total charge for each case within these DRGs, excluding outlier cases, from hospitals ~~which~~that had a psychiatric unit distinct part. A second arithmetic mean charge was calculated for DRGs 425 to 435 using data, excluding outlier cases, from all other hospitals (hospitals ~~which~~that did not have a recognized psychiatric unit distinct part under medicare).
- (e) If no cases were grouped by the medicare fiscal year 1998 grouper into any DRG, the arithmetic mean charge for these DRGs is the arithmetic mean charge that was used for these DRGs prior to the effective date of this rule.
- (6) Calculation of the statewide arithmetic mean charge per discharge.

The statewide arithmetic mean charge per discharge was calculated using the total allowable charge for all cases used in the calculation described in paragraphs (D)(5) to (D)(5)(d) of this rule.

- (7) Computation of the relative weight for each DRG and DRG subgroups.

The relative weight of each DRG is a function of the relationship between the arithmetic mean charge per DRG and DRG subgroups and the arithmetic mean charge across all cases. To determine the relative weight, the arithmetic mean charge for each DRG and DRG subgroup calculated as described in paragraphs (D)(5)(a) to (D)(5)(d) of this rule was divided by the statewide

5101:3-2-07.3

8

arithmetic mean charge per discharge as described in paragraph (D)(6) of this rule.

(E) Relative weights for small cell DRGs.

When ten or less claims grouped into a DRG, ~~the department~~ODJFS established relative weights taking into consideration the weights that previously were used for the DRG, as well as the DRG case mix. When ten or less claims grouped into a new DRG, ~~the department~~ODJFS used relative weights currently used by medicare.

FEB 18 2010

TN No. 09-020 Approval Date: _____

SUPERSEDES

TN No. 08-015 Effective Date: 01-01-2010

5101:3-2-07.3

9

Effective:

R.C. 119.032 review dates: 10/13/2009

Certification

Date

Promulgated Under: 119.03
Statutory Authority: 5111.02, Section 309.30.18 of Am. Sub. H.B. 1, 128th G.A.
Rule Amplifies: 5111.01, 5111.02, 5111.021, Section 309.30.18 of Am. Sub. H.B. 1, 128th G.A.
Prior Effective Dates: 10/4/84, 7/3/86, 10/19/87, 9/3/91 (Emer), 11/10/91, 1/20/95, 1/1/98, 2/1/00, 10/13/05, 3/12/07, 7/24/08

FEB 18 2010

TN No. 09-020 Approval Date: _____
SUPERSEDES
TN No. 08-015 Effective Date: 01-01-2010

OS Notification

State/Title/Plan Number: Ohio 09-020

Type of Action: SPA Approval

Required Date for State Notification: March 1, 2010

Fiscal Impact:

FY 2010	\$0
FY 2011	\$0

Number of Services Provided by Enhanced Coverage, Benefits or Retained Enrollment: 0

Number of Potential Newly Eligible People: 0

Eligibility Simplification: No

Provider Payment Increase: No

Delivery System Innovation: No

Number of People Losing Medicaid Eligibility: No

Reduces Benefits: No

Detail: Effective for services on or after January 1, 2010, this amendment delays the requirement for updating the relative weights of DRGs until January 1, 2012, and continues to require annual updates thereafter. Ohio pays for inpatient hospital services under a diagnosis related grouping (DRG) based prospective payment system (PPS). Payments are made on a per discharge basis and are calculated by taking the average cost per discharge amount, multiplying it by the relative weight for the DRG assigned to the discharge. The State plan calls for relative weights to be updated on an annual basis. This amendment delays that requirement until January 1, 2012.

Other Considerations:

This plan amendment has not generated significant outside interest and we do not recommend the Secretary contact the governor.

Recovery Act Impact:

The Regional office has reviewed this state plan amendment in conjunction with the Recovery Act and, based on the available information provided by the State regarding 1) MOE; 2) local match; 3) prompt pay; 4) rainy day funds, and 5) eligible expenditures, the Regional Office believes that the State is not in violation of the Recovery Act requirements noted above.

CMS Contact:

Todd McMillion (608) 441-5344
National Institutional Reimbursement Team